ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 23, 2009
8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Munoz, Vice Chair
Representative Bryce Edgnon

Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW S) : DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT
DI SCUSSI ON ON GOVERNOR' S PROPOSED PRE- KI NDERGARTEN PI LOT PROGRAM

- HEARD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 23
"An Act establishing a grant program to support voluntary class
si ze reduction.”
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 23

SHORT TITLE: CLASS S| ZE REDUCTI ON GRANTS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) CRAWFORD, GARA

01/ 20/ 09 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) EDC, FIN

02/ 23/ 09 (H) EDC AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

ERI C CROFT
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -1- February 23, 2009



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as a forner legislator to assist
in presenting HB 23 on behalf of the joint prime sponsor,
Representative Harry Crawf ord.

EDDY JEANS, Director

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 23.

LARRY LEDOUX, Comnmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Chil dhood Devel opnent (DEED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the DEED overview of the Pre-
Ki ndergarten Pil ot Program

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWFORD

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as one of the joint prine
sponsors of HB 23.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:01: 37 AM
CHAI R PAUL SEATON cal l ed the House Education Standing Conmmttee

meeting to order at 8:01 a.m Represent ati ves Seaton, W] son,
Edgnon, Gardner, Buch, and Keller were present at the call to

or der. Representative Minoz arrived as the neeting was in
progr ess.
OVERVI EW S) : DEPARTVENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPNENT

DISCUSSION ON THE GOVERNOR S PROPOSED PRE- KI NDERGARTEN PI LOT
PROGRAM

8:02:15 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business would be
Overviews): Departnent O Education and Early Devel opnment
Di scussion on the Governor's Proposed Pre-Kindergarten Pilot
Pr ogr am

8:02: 54 AM

LARRY LEDOUX, Conm ssioner, Departnent of Education and Early
Chi | dhood Devel opnent (DEED), recalled several neetings recently

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 2- February 23, 2009



held in Anchorage related to this topic. He explained that a
group of Al askans discussed the imredi ate changes necessary to
address the graduation rate in Al aska. Anot her group conprised
of early childhood providers, Head Start, Best Beginnings, the
University of Alaska, and Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED) personnel discussed inplenentation policies
for prograns. He indicated the DEED has requested $2 mllion in
its budget request to develop a Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program
in Al aska. He nmentioned that this program would be a voluntary
school -based program designed to work wth poverty-Ievel
children and famlies, children with disabilities, children who
are learning English as a second |anguage, and at-risk children
who are not prepared to read or |earn.

8:04:27 AM

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX offered his belief that quality pre-school
prograns nake a difference in children’s |lives. Brain
devel opmrent between birth and school age is phenonenal, he
opi ned. Anything that can be done to encourage devel opnent of
heal t hy brains pays trenendous divi dends. He stressed that his

focus today is not on the financial benefits of early chil dhood
education, but rather to provide information that denonstrates
chil dren need qual ity soci al , enot i onal , and physi cal
experiences prior to entering school that prepares them to
| earn.

8:05:13 AM

COW SSI ONER  LEDOUX stated that the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot
Program will provide an enphasis on quality prograns for four-
year olds that will be “state-driven” with local control over
| eadership and program deci sions. He indicated the Pre-
Ki ndergarten Pilot Program wll enphasize a wde variety of
nodels ranging from rural to urban and wll be designed to

enhance existing pre-kindergarten prograns. Applicants to host
these prograns nust denonstrate the means by which they wll
nmeet the program goals and requirenents. He stressed that
applicants nust denonstrate how the district wll support
parents and children enrolled in a center-based program the
“strengthening famlies” nodel, as well as support for those not
enrolled in any program by providing library materials, hone
visits, and other materials as requested. If an application is
reviewed positively, the applicant nmay request a waiver from any
specific requirenent. He explained that the DEED has the
ability during the RFP process to craft the Pre-Kindergarten
Pilot Programto fit the needs of the conmmunity it wll serve.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 3- February 23, 2009



He nentioned that the DEED s FY 10 budget request also includes
funding for the Head Start program within the Teaching and
Learning Support Division so the program can work wth all
children within a comunity.

8:07: 08 AM

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX explained that the Pre-Kindergarten Pil ot
Program woul d be guided by the Al aska Early Learni ng guidelines,
aligned with the K-3 standards, and its curriculumw || be based
on the devel opnentally appropriate practices as defined by the
Nat i onal Association of Education of Young Children (NAEYC).
The requirenments for the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program include
that the teachers nust possess a Bachelors of Arts degree in
Early Childhood Education and the applicant nust denonstrate
partnerships with community entities. The program will provide
for ongoing teacher training and support. The class size wll
be limted to 20 with a staff ratio of 1:10 or better.
Community partners wll conduct vision, enotional and health
screeni ng. The three and a half hour program wll provide
children with nutritional snacks and neals, and children wll
have a mninmum of 15 hours of contact tine per week. The DEED

will also partner with community entities such as the Need for
Transportation and Extended Day Services. The Pre-Kindergarten
Pilot Program will incorporate a |ocal community board or an
advisory council wll be established in collaboration wth

community partners.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX enphasized that the program w il provide
admnistrative flexibility to encourage creative proposals that
will help provide information for the state's future devel opnent
of the pre-kindergarten system He stressed that the DEED will
prioritize community engagenent, offering additional points for
applicants showing collaboration anong the w dest possible
comunity partners. He related that the Pre-Kindergarten Pil ot
Program wll focus on comunities that are in an under
i nprovenent status with the departnment. He said he hopes that
the DEED will collect information for two years, and that the
departnment will regularly evaluate the program to produce data
t hat shoul d denonstrate the benefits of the program

8:09: 21 AM

COW SSI ONER  LEDQUX, in response to Representative Keller,
offered to provide his speaking notes to the conmmttee.

8:09:32 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 4- February 23, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON offered her support for the request for
proposal (RFP) process. She referred to constituent letters
expressing their concerns that the Pre-Kindergarten Pil ot
Program would be in conpetition wth existing child care
centers. She inquired as to whether the current child care
centers could apply if they neet the requirenments of the
program

COW SSI ONER LEDQUX offered his belief that the RFP will all ow

community partners to apply for funding. He enphasized the
outcone is the inportant aspect and not the process. He
stressed that standards will be in place for the Pre-

Ki ndergarten Pilot Program no matter what form the program
t akes.

8:10: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to the handout titled “Pre-K
Pilot QGuidelines” and inquired about the regulation referenced,
4 AAC 12.331, and asked if the teachers will be credenti al ed.

COW SS| ONER LEDOUX answered that trai ned teachers are essenti al

to the program He stated that the regulation requires that
teachers and classroom staff nust have a mninum of six credits
in early childhood education. He offered his belief that
credentialed teachers wll be required since they wll be

wor ki ng with young chil dren.
8:11:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked Conmi ssioner LeDoux to describe the
Al aska Early Learning Guidelines.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX responded that the Alaska Early Learning
GQuidelines were established in accordance with the vision of
University of Alaska early childhood devel opnent providers and

pr of essi onal s. He indicated that the guidelines address school
readi ness factors such as |anguage developnent, literacy, and
cognhition, ranging from birth to grade six. He offered to

provi de the docunent to the commttee.
8:12:11 AM
CHAIR SEATON related his understanding that the proposed Pre-

Ki ndergarten Pilot Program would focus on four-year olds, with a
cl ass size of 20, for 15 hours per week as the basic nodel. He

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 5- February 23, 2009



opined that the program would basically be a 4-year old

ki ndergarten cl ass. He recalled a simlar programin the North
Sl ope Borough that was elimnated, and asked the comm ssioner to
provide data from that program He further recalled the

children in the two-year Kkindergarten class out perforned
students that did not attend school for the additional year. He
al so asked if all kindergarten teachers are required to have an
endor senment .

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX answered that all kindergarten teachers are
certified as teachers, but do not all have a mninum of six

credits in early childhood devel oprent. He clarified that the
teachers for this program will be certified child professionals
with training in early childhood education. He enphasized

di fferences between a kindergarten class and an early chil dhood
program which he offered to provide to the conmttee in witten
form

CHAIR SEATON further recalled that the 2-year Kkindergarten
program was folded several years ago due to funding
requi renents, not due to |lack of performance. The outcones for
t hat program shoul d be available to support the Pre-Kindergarten
Pil ot Program he surm sed.

8:16:17 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER inquired as to whether transportation and

extended day care are requirenents for the Pre-Kindergarten
Pil ot Program

COWMWM SSI ONER  LEDOUX answered no. He stated that t he
recommendation would be for comunity partnerships to assist
parents. He said that the public systemw || not be required to

transport young children for the proposed pilot program
8:.17:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON cautioned the conmttee not to attenpt to
conpare prograns in the North Slope region, as she recalled that
the programs were not fully funded, but tended to suppl enent the
school funding in those school districts She cautioned that the
Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program may have a decidedly different
focus versus the prior kindergarten program Thus, a conparison
may not provide a fair assessnent unless the baseline and
educator requirenents for the prior programare al so consi dered.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 6- February 23, 2009



CHAI R SEATON recalled the North Sl ope program required certified
teachers and received full funding including cost differential

He agreed it would be inportant to discern the differences. He
opined it is inportant to examine simlar prograns in Al aska and

the Lower 48 and their results. Chair Seaton added that he
would also like to review the solutions that the early chil dhood
group anti ci pat ed. Thus, the conmittee will have sone idea of

what the group that nmet on this discussed and their recomended
sol utions.

8:20: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER recalled a flurry of conmmunications from
daycare providers that argue that the current system neets the
needs of preschool children. She related the conplaints are
that governnent should not provide what the private sector is
al ready providing. She highlighted that private schools exist
as well as public schools and neither should be elimnated.
However, she also recognized that a range of child care exists.
She said, “Sonme of it is crummy and sone of it is absolutely

wonder ful ...” She inquired as to whether any information on
ranking child care prograns exists. She further asked how the
department will target the regions that really need the pilot

program and not provide duplicate services in areas that do not
need the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX expl ained that daycare progranms and early
| earning prograns are very different. He enphasized that the
department is focusing on quality early learning prograns for
four-year olds. He stated that the Head Start program has a
lengthy waiting list, up to 1,000, and many children cone to
ki ndergarten not having attended any program He offered that
the state has an Early Childhood Education System It is the
intent of the departnment to work through the system which is
why the program is a “pilot” program The DEED s underlying
phil osophy is to recognize that parents are the best educators
of their small children. He pointed out that part of the
program is to support the efforts of parents who are providing
those skills for their children. He related that the intent of
the RFP process is to work with providers in each commnity to
ensure that every child has an opportunity to gain early
chi |l dhood experiences prior to attending school. He nentioned
several nodels such as Head Start. He also pointed out that the
needs of four-year olds is different fromthe needs of five-year
ol ds. He surmsed that a universal program may negate the
i nportance of parents in the lives of their young children. He
offered his belief that using the RFP process allows the DEED to

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -7- February 23, 2009



work with each conmunity to fill the gaps in parent education,
and to access children that will benefit from a quality early
chi | dhood program The overarching goal is to inprove the
overall quality of early childhood education, he stated.

8:24: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked whet her the departnent has a tineline;
and whether the departnent is “pressed” due to the Superior
Court decision, More v. State.

COM SSI ONER LEDOUX opined that the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot
Program would be fully in place by next school year. He opi ned
that the court decision has caused the departnent to review
educational progranms in school districts in which the students
are chronically underperformng. However, the court decision is
not the notivating factor, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH stated that it sounds as if the departnent
is addressing this in a rational matter and it may just take
sone time.
8:26: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNOZ asked if underperformng districts or
schools will have a preference.

COWMM SSI ONER LEDQUX answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ recalled the conm ssioner nentioned that

transportati on poses one barrier at the kindergarten level. She
inquired as to whether there will be any neans for considering
support at the pre-kindergarten |evel. She further inquired as

to whether any preference could be given to those prograns that
of fer transportation or work with famlies to provide
transportation.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX responded that wthin the RFP, t he
department will look for full partnerships. He opined that the
nore services that are provided the greater the |ikelihood that
the programw ||l be funded. He offered his belief that by using
a grant fund, local resources will be l|leveraged to assist in
t hese areas. He also nentioned that it is problematic for sone
parents to transport their <children since the Kkindergarten
classes often are shorter progranms so busing is not available
after class.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 8- February 23, 2009



8:28:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNOZ offered that the “Ready to Read Ready to
Learn” program is beneficial in the early childhood and pre-
ki ndergarten prograns. She asked whether this program or
simlar prograns would be encouraged to participate with the
proponents of the pilot program

COW SSI ONER LEDOUX acknow edged that the “Ready to Read, Ready
to Learn” initiative is a wonderful docunent that is well
t hought out, is helping children, and forns the cornerstone of
the program that the DEED is trying to devel op. He i ndicated
that the DEED has worked closely with Best Begi nnings, a public-
private partnership that works to ensure all Al aska children
begin school ready to succeed, and Head Start, and other
professionals in the early learning environment to develop a
pr ogram

8:29:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER agreed with the comm ssioner's statenent
that parents are the best first teachers. He asked what
safeguards are in place to prevent the Pre-Kindergarten Pil ot
Program from becom ng a substitute for parental attention.

COWMM SSI ONER LEDQUX opined that the RFP process wll designate
the local conmunities to identify the children who need early
| earni ng assi stance. He stated that the enphasis is to help
parents who want to help their children and who need information
and access to an early learning professional. He related that
parents who are not interested in the services wll Dbe
respect ed. He said, “Parents who want to use the system as a
daycare or to abdicate their responsibilities; we’'re going to
|leave that to the local agency to set those standards within
that community. You know, |ocal communities do that best.” He
offered that if the DEED provides guidelines, the outcone could
be to block the children who need the services. He offered his
belief that providing quality information and access will allow
many parents to have the information to help their child devel op
pre-literacy skills.

8:.32:15 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to whether the Pre-
Ki ndergarten Pilot Program needs to be a “brick and nortar”

school setting. She cited the Parents as Teachers Program (PAT)
that hel ps parents becone better parents. She inquired as to

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 9- February 23, 2009



whet her PAT coul d successfully qualify for an RFP for the pilot
program

COM SSI ONER LEDOUX related that any organization within the
community that the school district supports via the RFP process
may have an opportunity to be part of the pilot program
However, he highlighted that any quality early chil dhood program
wi |l have close partnerships with the parents of children in the
program The advantage of an RFP pilot program is that the
DEED s goal is to not only reach parents of children who wll
participate in the pilot program but to also allow access to
resources for parents whose children are not in the program
Thus, conponents of the PAT program will be incorporated into
this Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program He added that the
advantage of an RFP process is the flexibility to |everage
partnerships within a comunity. He pointed out that every
community has a nunber of providers who are currently providing
services to those children. He enphasized the purpose of the
pilot is to find a pathway to collaborate and build the
infrastructure so that no child “falls through the cracks”
within the system He opined that a wunilateral effort would
negate the partnerships and would pull the children from the
private and public entities and place them in one vast system
He said, “That doesn’t always work as well.”

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH said that he is very encouraged that the
commi ssi oner enphasizes the need to collaborate with the various
progranms that currently exist.

COW SSI ONER  LEDOUX underscored his interest in providing
quality early chil dhood prograns.

8:35:45 AM

COWM SSI ONER LEDQUX, in response to Chair Seaton, answered that
t he advantage of wutilizing the RFP is that the individual cost

will be set. He related that cost factors of each comrunity can
be taken into account since he anticipates every programwl| be
different. He highlighted that the DEED wll not be attaching
specific funding for each child. The application will establish
what the funding requirenents will be in each area. He said,
“But we fully expect we’'re going to spend nore noney in sone of
the renote rural regions for a programthat will be identical to

one that was in Anchorage or Kodi ak or Kenai.”

8:37:17 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -10- February 23, 2009



CHAI R SEATON asked for a sunmary of the conmittee’s work that
includes the breadth and depth of +the anticipated program
i ncluding the funding nmechani sm He al so expressed interest in
the class size limt of 20 and 15 contact hours and how services
that are provided to parents whose children are not in the
classroomw |l fit into the funding fornmula.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX answered that each community is different.
Many early childhood prograns are four days per week prograns.

During the fifth day, the teacher will work with parents or nake
honme visits. He highlighted that each community’'s program wl |
vary. He related a scenario in which a community applies for

the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program but already has an existing
PAT program  The community may put together a program in which
the PAT personnel wll carry out the educational conponent for
t he parents. He cautioned that the DEED is not going to base
the funding on the nunber of children in the comunity who

parti ci pate. I nstead, the funding will be based on the quality
of the program and how the applicant “leverages resources” into
the comunity. He explained that if the program funding were

based on the size of the program that the DEED would assune
that each comunity possesses the sanme infrastructure, wll
of fer the same program and use the sane phil osophy to inplenent
the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program He said he hopes that every
community that applies will have enough funding to provide a
gqual ity conprehensive Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program within the
comunity.

COM SSIONER LEDOUX related that as part of the grant
devel opment, sone providers such as Head Start and Best
Begi nni ngs have been collaboratively working with the DEED and
the University of Alaska (UA). He said, “The beauty of the
programis that every programw || be different and because it’s
an RFP and we evaluate the RFP, we can |everage the nobney to
neet the need that that community individually puts together.”

8:40: 24 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked for clarification of how an existing program
such as a PAT program wll be leveraged into the Pre-
Ki ndergarten Pilot Program He further asked for the paraneters
of the program and how the pilot program will nmesh with the
fundi ng of an existing program

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX offered his belief that applicants for the

grant wll collaborate with other comrunity providers. He
opined that if a community had a PAT program that the applicant

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -11- February 23, 2009



woul d reference the PAT program He further opined that a solo

PAT program would not likely qualify. In further response to
Chair Seaton, Conm ssioner LeDoux reiterated that the Pre-
Ki ndergarten Pilot Program will apply to four-year olds and the

five-year olds that are too early to start school.
8:43: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER inquired as to whether what standards w |
be utilized for faith-based organizations who mght also apply
for the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX answered that all programs wll wuse state
the Alaska Early Learning Quidelines as the basis to align the
curricul um

8:44: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if the guidelines are nmet will the
school district and faith-based organi zati on be kept separate in
accordance with the statutes.

COW SSI ONER LEDOUX answered that he did not think that faith-
based organizations are specifically addressed in the Pre-
Ki ndergarten Pilot Program He offered to review the issue of
how faith-based organizations nesh. He offered his intent to
provide information to support parents who are working wth
their children. He stressed that if a parent is sending their
child to a private early learning environnent, that the DEED s
services to that parent would be the sane, regardl ess of whether
they attend a private or public setting. He pointed out that he
envisions it would be simlar to correspondence prograns that
the DEED provides to parents. He said, “But we wll serve
parents.”

8:45:35 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked for clarification of “leverage” wth respect
the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program

COWMM SSI ONER LEDQOUX expl ai ned t hat pri or to becom ng
conmi ssioner, he wote a grant called “The Learning Café” that
provi ded services to students up to the age of 24 who had
dropped out of school. He related that the grant provided a
broad range of services. He stated that as part of the
devel opnment of the RFP, he was able to |everage funds from the
community in support of the effort. The community shared a

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -12- February 23, 2009



common goal to help young people find success and had a vehicle

through his grant to achieve its goal. Thus, if a comunity is
devel oping a program to provide quality early learning, due to
the collaborative nature of the RFP, other sources wll offer
resources in support of the comunity’ s need, he stated. He
offered his belief that the strength of any grant program is
that it brings people together to prepare an attractive
pr oposal .

8:47:32 AM

CHAI R SEATON related his understanding that |everaging of funds
woul d not just nean coordination with existing progranms but that
the RFP is able to expand the existing program with new grant
funding and that is what is neant by the | everage of funds.

8:48: 06 AM

COWM SSI ONER LEDOQUX answered that it is difficult to predict
what the applications will consist of but he stressed that the
DEED desires to work with existing programs in the conmunity.
He expl ained that the pilot program could allow a community that
does not have an existing program to create a single program
He contrasted that comunity with one in which many public-
private progranms currently exist. Thus, the two applications
woul d be very different. He enphasized the DEED wants to find a
niche for every child to have a quality wearly childhood
experi ence. He offered his belief that the expectation is that
this pilot program will raise the bar in each conmunity that
parti ci pates.

8:48: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked if other states offer simlar prograns
and have al ready set paraneters for their prograns.

COWMM SSI ONER LEDOUX answered that nmany states have fully funded
uni versal preschool prograns. He offered to provide information

for the commttee. He elaborated that some states use Head
Start as the vehicle, others have no program He reiterated
that DEED s goal is to provide every child with quality early
chi | dhood support. Thus, instead of proposing a universal

program the nature of the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Programis to
work within each community and collaborate within the existing
infrastructure in Alaska to wutilize |local resources. He
surmsed that the pilot program will not be able to reach all
children and anticipates revisiting the legislature to provide

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -13- February 23, 2009



feedback and revise the program to neet the needs of the
comunity.

8:50: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON recalled that the DEED hopes to have the
program in place by the fall school year. He opined that the
RFP process may be |engthy. He inquired as to how the RFP
process will wunfold, the nunber of additional admnistrative
staff will be necessary to review the proposals.

COWMM SSI ONER LEDOUX expl ai ned that the DEED is al ready preparing
RFP's and the infrastructure is being devel oped. He said he
hopes that the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program funding wll be
approved, that the infrastructure will be in place so that as
soon as the funds are approved these RFP's will be distributed.
He nentioned that the departnent wl]l provi de technica
assi stance, hopes to have pilot prograns in various geographical
areas of the state.

8:51: 55 AM
REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON i nquired as to whether the distribution of
the funds would conpare wth +the Alaska Housing Finance

Cor poration (AHFC) weat herization programdistribution of funds.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX responded that the DEED anticipates that the

program wi I | have geographic priorities to ensure that statew de
needs will be taken into consideration. He said, “We hope we
have programs from Barrow to Wangell, if you wll, when it's

all said and done. W won't say that this conmmunity is going to
get one but we are interested in geographic diversity around the
state and we'll wite that into the RFP.”

8:52:53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON asked how assessnents will be neasured to
determine if the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Program has net its
obj ecti ves.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOQUX answered that each district is required to
submt the “Alaska Developnental Profile” which neasures a

nunber of criteria that wll provide the data necessary to
determ ne the success of the child s pre-literacy and pre-social
skills. He said that the DEED believes it already has an

assessnment program in place to neasure the pilot programns
success.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -14- February 23, 2009



8:56: 31 AM

COM SSIONER LEDOUX, in response to Representative WIson,
expl ai ned that he understands the facets that each school brings

to each community. He stated that he hopes that this program
will becone a catalyst to provide new partnerships in each
conmuni ty. He related that while an overall quality is the

goal, that each programw || be different.
8:57: 00 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked how nmany progranms m ght be funded if the full
$2 mllion for the Pre-Kindergarten Pilot Programis approved.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX estimated approximately 20 prograns are
anticipated for the pilot since some comunities may have only a

few children. He opined that if the program is funded and is
successful, that the DEED wll need to request additional
funding so the goal is to create an efficient data-driven

program and to set up sites to collect the information.

8: 58: 39 AM

COWM SSI ONER LEDQUX, in response to Chair Seaton, explained that
the applications will come from school districts in partnership
with coommunities, with the potential for the district to request
funds for nore than one site in its application. In further
response to Chair Seaton, Comm ssioner LeDoux related that grant
witing involves sone risk. The need for quality early

devel opnent prograns is universal, not only rural versus urban.
He surmised that in ten years the program m ght neet the needs
of 25 percent of Alaska's pre-kindergarten children. He
expl ained that 50 percent of parents wll probably provide the
experiences, and Head Start and private progranms will neet the
rest of the needs of children. He reiterated his belief that
the pilot program will “raise the bar” due to the collaborative
nature of the RFP process.

9:00: 40 AM

CHAI R SEATON related his understanding that of 10,000 four-year
olds, the program estinmates about that about 400-500 children
woul d be served in the pilot program He recalled that brain
devel opment for children ages one to three is rapidly expanding.
He inquired as to the rationale for selecting four-year ol ds.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 15- February 23, 2009



9:01:45 AM

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX surmi sed that the reason to focus on the
four to five year olds is due to the political reality of state
f undi ng. He stressed the inportance of building the
infrastructure that could expand to three-year-olds. He pointed
out the inportance of the role of parents in young children’s
lives.

CHAI R SEATON agr eed. He also reminded the commttee that
parents have the potential to be the best teachers. However, it
is not happening in Alaska, which is why the legislature is
considering funding a $2 mllion grant program He nmentioned
that children are not arriving to school ready to |earn. He
stressed that these efforts are geared to get Al aska closer to
the ideal. He nentioned that the Parents as Teachers (PAT)
program has been in Hoonah for 14 years. He inquired as to
whether the district <can track individual performance of
students in a school with a program |like the PAT as conpared to
a school w thout such a program

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX explained that statistical data regarding
each child that enters first grade can be provided. However, he
hi ghlighted that information regarding prograns that exist in
each area wll not be available. He pointed out that the
avai lability of a programis not necessarily the only factor to
consider since the outcone depends on the quality of the
program

9:07: 25 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered that providing an assessnment over tine nay
be the best neans for understanding the effects of a programin
a given community. He suggested that it 1is inportant to
under stand how the existing prograns are perform ng.

9:08:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER opined that early childhood learning is
clearly beneficial. He related his understanding that parents
often bring their children to early |learning prograns
vol untarily. He enpathized with how difficult it is to collect
nmeani ngful data for this age group. He further related that a
child mght be three to four years ahead due to the early
| earni ng experi ences.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 16- February 23, 2009



COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX recalled a statenent that he agrees wth:
“Col l ege begins in pre-school”. He opined that quality early
| earning prograns have been deened critical in the devel opnent
of the child, with the enphasis on quality.

9:12: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that nuch could be acconplished
wth a good library in every comunity, wth a qualified
librarian present to provide story hours every day.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX offered his belief that literacy of our
children, making sure that every child can read by the tinme they
finish second grade is a statewide priority. If conmmunities
realized the inportance, reading circles would be prevalent. He
said that literacy is a nunber one priority. He said he hopes
that the pilot programw |l help create that environment and can
build on it. He also stated that the DEED should not take over
the responsibility but should provide an infrastructure that
W ll ensure that every child has access. He said, “This is only
the first step.”

9:13:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ recal l ed that assessnents will be given in
ki ndergarten and first grade with the developnental profile.
She inquired as to whether the DEED will also track the child
through the third and fifth grade assessnent.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX agreed that the children’s success wll be
tracked through the years.

9:13:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON drew attention to the information on the
federal stimulus funding for education packet and indicated her
interest in how the departnment will incorporate the funding into
t he formul a.

COM SSI ONER LEDOUX related that the expectation is that the
stimulus funding will be distributed based on the Title |
popul ati ons since school districts receive nost of the federa
fundi ng through this formul a.

9:16: 41 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -17- February 23, 2009



COWMM SSI ONER LEDOUX, in response to Chair Seaton, explained that
the information in the commttee packet was prepared by the
f eder al government and the information from the federal
government changes daily. He said that he will neet with the
Secretary of Education this week in Washington D.C. He said he
hopes to share the unique circunstances that Al aska faces.

9:17: 21 AM

CHAI R SEATON nentioned that Shirley Pitts, Ofice of Children' s
Servi ces/ Departnment of Health and Social Services is online to
answer questions. He also indicated that conmunications
received fromconstituents are in nenbers’ packets.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER commented that having an  OCS/ DHSS
representative on line to this nmeeting i s encouraging.

9:19:43 AM

COM SSI ONER LEDQUX, in response to Representative Gardner,
agreed to address the commttee regarding details on dropouts
and the graduation rate.

9:20: 25 AM

The committee took an at-ease from9:20 a.m to 9:24 a.m
HB 23- CLASS S| ZE REDUCTI ON GRANTS

9:24:23 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 23, "An Act establishing a grant program to
support voluntary class size reduction.”

9: 24: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  HARRY  CRAWFORD, Al aska State Legislature,
par aphrased from his sponsor statenent that this process began
in about 2003. He stated that the dropout rate was bad then but
is worse now. He opined that Alaska is failing its children and
has a dropout rate nearly double the national average that | eads
to a nunber of negatives. He offered that students who conplete
hi gh school earn an average of $290,000 nore in their lifetinme.
He related that non-graduates are 68 percent nore likely to rely
on public assistance and graduates are 20 percent less likely to
commt violent crines. He stated that according to a 2002 U. S

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 18- February 23, 2009



Government Accountability Ofice study nearly 80 percent of

inmates were high school dropouts. The average cost of
incarceration to the State of Alaska in 2002 was $36,730 per
year. Alaska ranks as ninth in the nunber of students who wll

earn a university Bachelor’s degree in 10 years.
9:26: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD rel ated that HB 23 would give a grant of
$8,000 to any school district that will comit to class sizes of
15 or under. He explained that the class size of 15 was chosen
because the Project STAR a Tennessee based study, tested three
cl ass sizes, and saw a dramatic increase in performance in class
sizes of 13-17 students. O her studies, such as one in
California in which class sizes were reduced to 20 showed sone
i nprovenent, but did not denonstrate the dramatic inprovenent
that smaller class sizes showed.

9: 28: 23 AM

ERIC CROFT stated that as a past legislator, he had previously
introduced simlar legislation. He stressed the many things can
be done to help the school system but the single nost inportant
thing is to have students enter school with appropriate skills.
Additionally, it is inportant to have a qualified teacher wth
time to teach. Despite technol ogical advances, it renmins that
the two nost inportant things are to enter school ready to |learn
and to have a teacher who has tine to teach his/her students, he

st at ed. He indicated that particularly in the K-3 classes the
class size is inportant. He characterized this bill as an
antidote to one-size fits all testing nodel of the “No Child
Left Behind” testing nodel. He further opined that by adding

testing requirenents wthout providing states wth the
addi tional resources does not do the school systens justice. He
mentioned that the bill would not dictate what the district nust
do, but if the school districts decide to inplenent the grant
program the program can be conpleted at their own tinme and
speed. He pointed out that California tried to inplenent class
size reduction as a requirenment but could not hire enough
teachers or find that many buildings in a year or two.

MR. CROFT related that the state can provide the incentives, the
“road map”, and the funding to address two of the nobst inportant
aspects of education.

9:33: 33 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -19- February 23, 2009



CHAI R SEATON i nquired as to whether school would need to address
all classes from kindergarten through third grade (K-3) in order
to qualify for funding.

9:34:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCRD expl ai ned that the intent of HB 23 is to
make this funding as flexible as possible and have it apply for
cl asses K-3. However, a school may need to begin wth
ki ndergarten and add cl asses as possi bl e.

9:35: 39 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to the sectional analysis titled
“House Bill No. 23 — Voluntary Cass Size Reduction Sectional
Summary”, to Section 2 that read: “Only schools maintaining a
class size of no nore than 15 in grades kindergarten through
three would be eligible for grants.”

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD answered that his intention is to nake
it nore flexible than that. In further response to Chair
Seaton, Representative Crawford answered that he was not certain
how to enforce the commtnent that each school district
participate for a mninmm of five years to provide data on the
efficacy. He offered his belief that class size wll reap
benefits.

9:37:16 AM

CHAI R SEATON inquired as to what neasure of achievenent wll be
used to track the academc progress and achievenent |evels.
Chair Seaton further inquired if the language in the sectiona
analysis that states the definition for “child wth a
disability” has the meaning in AS 14.30.350, which refers to
speci al education students.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said he did not know. In further
response to Chair Seaton, Representative Crawford agreed that
the $8,000 funding will go through the current foundation

formul a fundi ng.
9:40: 07 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER pointed out that the title states that it

is to support class size reduction, but he recalled that the
criteria for the grant would require a conmtnent to that size.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 20- February 23, 2009



He related his understanding that half of the schools in the
state could not neet that class size.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD related his understanding that many
schools statewide have small class sizes but have other
problens. The funding would also act as an incentive for those
cl asses to do a better job, he stated.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nmintained his belief that the title of
the bill needs to be altered to include a commtnent to reduce
cl ass size versus requiring a reduction in class size.

9:42:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQOZ referred to the fiscal note. She pointed
out that the fiscal note is for $118 [million] but in
calculating the five year grants the totals to about $38
mllion.

CHAI R SEATON asked to hold questions on the fiscal note for M.
Jeans.

9:43: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER provided a district scenario that m ght
pose a problem with respect to special education children such
that a district has 14 children but the next child is a specia
education child. She opined the district would |ose funding
al l ocation since the class size would exceed 15:1

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD stated that if the special education
child is counted as two, that the class would be divided into
two entities to naintain the small size.

9:44:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER inquired as to how many new teachers and
cl assroons would be required if this bill passed and was
i npl enent ed.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD related that the fiscal note includes
all classroons that would be eligible statewide, if all classes
partici pated. However, he pointed out it would not be realistic
to inplenent statew de.

9:44:59 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -21- February 23, 2009



CHAIR SEATON referred to the sectional again, and read, “A
parent of a child my file a conplaint in court to require a
district to conply with and enforce the class size requirenments
of this Act.” He inquired as to whether Representative Crawford
t hought that the bill refers to voluntary class size when it
seens to him as though at |east one parent would file a |awsuit
to force the school district to enforce the snmaller class size.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD answered that provision would apply once
the school district agrees to the small class size to ensure
that the class size was naintained. He stated that the schoo
would not be forced to nake the commitnent to reduce class
Si zes.

CHAI R SEATON suggested that the sponsor should request a |egal
opinion on this point. He opined that a court challenge could
cone to the fore, given the existing |anguage.

9:47: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his belief that nothing prevents a
school district to choose to have a |ow teacher to student ratio
on its own.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD, in response to Chair Seaton, answered
that the grant would fund certified/qualified teachers and not
t eacher ai des.

9:47:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated that every single school that could
get a teacher would apply since this would help the school
obt ai n additional funding.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said that that would be the intent, for
each school to inplenent this as quickly as possible.

9:48: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON related that classroom facilities would be
an i ssue.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD offered that the intent of the bill is
not to make small classroons nandatory but to get smaller
classes in place as quickly as possible. The results for smal

cl asses have been denpbnstrated. He said, “I just don’t think we
can afford not to do this.” Alaskan children are being failed

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -22- February 23, 2009



and sonmething needs to change, he added. He opined that the

state will spend a lot of noney to try to fix problens wth
educati on. He further opined that directing attention to the
early grades will garner results throughout a student’s career.

He again said, “College begins in pre-school.”
9:50: 17 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked what percentage  of districts would
automatically qualify for this program since sone classes
al ready have | ess than 15 students.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD deferred to M. Jeans.
9:51: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON rel ated her understanding that the i npact
in fundi ng coul d be consi derabl e.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD addressed the fiscal note regarding the
W angel | school s. He opined that the schools in Wangell would
recei ve al nost $244,000 in additional funding.

9:52:59 AM

CHAI R SEATON inquired as to whether Representative Crawford has
revi ewed t he base student all ocation.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD recalled that the fiscal note was based
on 1.5 tines the base student allocation.

9:54: 30 AM

CHAI R SEATON related his understanding that the intent of the
bill is to provide an additional $2,500 per student for
ki ndergarten through third grade. If a school district were
able to nake the change for kindergarten and first grade that
the bill would only apply to classes for 15 students or |ess.
9:56: 23 AM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED), stated
that the DEED prepared a fiscal note for HB 23. He directed
attention to Page 2 of the fiscal note. He expl ained that the
DEED reviewed the total nunber of students enrolled in K-3, by
district, and assuned that every district would apply for the

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 23- February 23, 2009



grant if they do not automatically qualify for the grant by
default since many of the schools already have a ration of
peopl e teacher ratios (PTR) below 15:1. He related that the
fiscal note was based on a school size adjustnent of .97, which
represents the adjustnment that schools would receive from the

school size adjustnent table from 250-450 students. He stated
that he could have picked another adjustnent, but that is the
one selected for this purpose. He further explained that

geographic cost differentials were added to the adjustnent as
wel | as 20 percent for special needs funding. Thus, the overall
cost was $118 million statew de, he stated.

MR. JEANS opined that the DEED interpreted the costs as

suppl enental grants above the base student allocation (BSA). He
reviewed the calculation which he said was applied that to the
adj usted attendance area and average daily nenbership (ADM. He
expl ained that for 2011-2015 the same adjustnent was used. He

nmentioned that an additional $7,476 is added for each year to
adjust for the consuner price index (CPl).

9:59: 02 AM

CHAI R SEATON related his understanding that the basis for the
fiscal note is $118 mllion and the other funds are estinmated
for Consuner Price Index (CPl) adjustnent, but the $118 million
is the base anobunt since it represents the beginning of the
program

MR. JEANS agreed. He stated that once the funds are in the base
funding and the additional years would be adjusted for the CPI.

9:59: 37 AM

REPRESENTATIVE MINOZ related that the fiscal note is $118
mllion plus the CPI for the five years. She inquired as to
whet her any cost is included for additional space that mght be
needed to inplenment the smaller classroomsizes.

MR. JEAN answered no. However, he noted that typically the
| arger urban schools would need additional space. However, he
explained that if HB 23 were to pass, that would be taken into
consideration when the departnent considered space eligibility
to allow nunicipalities to request additional noney to expand
their facilities.

10: 00: 46 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 24- February 23, 2009



CHAI R SEATON returned to his question regarding the ratio of
school s whose PTR is bel ow 15 for K-3 cl assroons.

MR. JEANS offered to provide an estinate for the conmttee. The
| arger urban areas have a ratio that is over 1:15 with nost
reporting classroom sizes of 17 to 18 PTR He explained that
the way that this bill would work is to provide additional
funding on a per child basis.

10: 01: 48 AM

CHAI R SEATON expressed concern that the bill would not provide
enough funding to increnentally inplenment the program He posed
several instances in which a school mght have to split a
cl assroomor hire additional teachers.

MR. JEANS offered to provide the information. However, M.
Jeans opined that the fiscal note for HB 23 would provide enough
funding to hire the teachers the schools would need to hire. He
posed a scenario in which dacier Valley School has 2 classes
for each grade fromK — 3. He related that if the school has a
17:1 ratio, that probably only two additional children would be
in each of the six classes so one or tw additional classes
would be created to fulfill the smaller <class ratios. He
further opined that the smaller schools already neet the
requi renents but would gain additional revenue under the bill
He opined that nmany small schools are operating at a 10:1 or
| ess PTR rati o.

10: 04: 15 AM

MR. JEANS addressed Representative Grdner's question that
adding an extra special education child to the class would put
the school over the ratio of 15:1 PTR He responded that the
child would not be counted as two students, except when applying
the formula to generate revenue, and not for the PTR ratio.

10: 04: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON inquired as to what would happen if the
student count was 15 and an additional child was added to the
cl ass.

MR. JEANS expl ained that scenario would trigger subsection (d)
which is where the child s parents or the state would petition
the court to enforce the smaller classroom size. He indicated
that this subsection is the enforcenment aspect of the bill for

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 25- February 23, 2009



conpl i ance. He enphasized that if a school district gave its
assurance that it would maintain a smaller classroom size, the
mechani sm exists for the parents or the state to force
conpl i ance.

10: 05: 43 AM

CHAI R SEATON mai ntained his concern regarding the |egal aspect,
such that a parent could assert that funding is available,
hi s/ her school district is opting to offer a lesser quality
education than is avail abl e statew de.

MR. JEANS answered that he understood Chair Seaton’s concern.

10: 07: 23 AM

MR. JEANS, in response to Representative WIson, explained that
the fiscal note reflects the changes over the prior year. Once
t he change has occurred, it becones part of the base. Thus, the
$118 mllion is the base and is carried forward, he noted.

10: 07: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON rel ated her understanding that the cost is
actual ly higher since the fiscal note costs are cunul ative.

MR. JEANS reiterated that inplenmenting HB 23 would require and
addi ti onal $118 mllion from this point forward, pl us
adj ustments for each additional year.

10: 08: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked how nuch nore will the cost be for a
five year period.

MR. JEANS answered that it would cost approxinmately $600 million
over a five-year period.

10: 08: 58 AM

CHAI R SEATON inquired as to whether a $100 increase in the base
al | ocati on anmounted to about $20 milli on.

MR JEANS agreed that the increase would range from $20-22
mllion.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 26- February 23, 2009



MR. JEANS, in response to Chair Seaton agreed that is a fair
assessnment that the cost of inplenmenting HB 23 woul d represent a
base all ocation increase of $500 statew de

10: 09: 31 AM

ADJ OQURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Education Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 10:09 a. m

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -27- February 23, 2009



